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Penty Park
SN01052213            OS  25” first edition   XXIII.6          Walton East
House Cadw listed.

County Library, Haverfordwest:
Schedule of Penty Park documents deposited with the National Library of Wales by Mrs B Lloyd, Penty Park. Compiled by B G Charles.
85, 86  1810  Letters from Theophilus Jones, Brecon to Col. J.P.Lloyd, Mabws near Lampeter    

          on all sorts of subjects inc. Norris, Tenby and Fenton. Several other letters about the 

             Lloyd pedigrees.

115 1866 April 26  Letter from James Allen, Castlemartin (Who he? - GH) to Lloyd Philipps, wants to borrow MS and pedigree book formerly belonging to Mr Bulkeley Philipps to enable him to help Mason of Tenby in completing some notes on Pembrokeshire High Sheriffs.

102  1832  Appointment of J.P.Lloyd-Philipps, Mabus as J.P., Cardiganshire.

116  1866 May 8  Another letter on the same subject.

119  Title of the Earl of Cawdor to the Manor of Wiston and to land at Wiston and Slebech.

131  1876  Obituary of John Johnes, Dolaucothi  from The Welshman with additions.

142  Appointment of Frederick Lloyd Lloyd-Philipps as Deputy Lieutenant, Carmarthenshire.

146  1902 Sept 30  Sale poster of the outdoor effects of the late F.Ll. Lloyd-Philipps.

1919    (GC Horticultural Directory and Yearbook):   F.L, Lloyd Esq.   No gardener named.
1997  For sale in several lots (ie house with drive and garden to north, walled garden with outline permission for 39 caravans, farm building complex and agricultural land)

1999   Said to have been sold  (television program 20 November 1999)

2001  Outbuildings/conversions still advertised.

Portraits in Welsh Houses / Steegman 1962

Penty Park  has an entry.  The owners are given as Mrs. C.M.E.P. Jenkin and Mrs G.C.L. Trevelyan-Jones.  There were 23 paintings and 4 miniatures.

Richard Lloyd of Mabws?

Sir John Stepney whose daughter married John Allen of Dale.

James Martin attributed to John Martin, 1817. A Martin had married a Lloyd daughter at some time.

(17)  Three daughters of Richard Llewellyn Lloyd (1872-1938). Elinor, Frances ob 1923 and Cecilia  by H.C. Oakley 1919  (signed and dated). The three girls are seated on a sofa with a tapestry behind.

(18)  Elinor,  Mrs Warren Davis ob 1938 by Beatice Lloyd, her mother.

Mrs C.M.E.P.Jenkin is said to possess 12-15 paintings from Penty Park, possibly including these.

Walton East church contains no memorials before 1900 (where were they?). There is one tomb in the churchyard of Mary Lady (Philipps) Milford who was sister to James (Lloyd?) Philipps of Penty Park. ((1813?)

The west window is a 1945 memorial:

In memory of Richard Llewellyn Lloyd of Penty Park (died 1938) by his widow         Beatrice (who died 1955). They had three daughters.

A shield has castle,scaling ladders and spear in two quarters and wolf rampant in the other two.
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North side plaque:

Captain John Lewis Lloyd, 1881-1918, killed in action France, brother of Richard     Llewellyn Lloyd of Penty Park.

East window to FLLP and EFWP who died in 1902 and 1900.

South window:

Francis Grace Philipps Lloyd, second daughter of RLL and BL died 1923 aged 18 years.

Plaque:

Elinor Mary Beatrice Philipps, wife of Bertie Warren Davies of Trewarren, Pembrokeshire, eldest daughter of RL and BL of Penty Park, 1904-1938 at N’Tumbi Reefs, Tanganyka, a devoted daughter, wife and mother.

Churchyard:

There is a row of graves. From left to right:



Mary Lady Milford



FLLP 1902



EFWP 1900



Grace Philipps Lloyd died at 18yrs in1923



RLL 1938



BL 1955



Bertie Warren Davies 1955?

(FLLP, the son of Col. James Lloyd Philipps of Penty Park married Elizabeth Frances Walters Philipps of Aberglasney but had no issue.

Richard Llewellyn Lloyd of Cardiganshire (“a kinsman”) married Beatrice Williams of Denbighshire (and Aberystwyth?) and had three daughters. This is the lady who painted all the tiles at Warpool Court when living there with her daughter Mrs. Jenkin.17th January 1996  Visit with KBH and Mrs Sylvia Thomas Ferrand following sale advertisements and on 14th August 1997 with KBH at our request. 

Entrance two or three hundred metres south of the mansion from minor east-west road. Modest cement-rendered gate piers set back; flat coping stones could be of sandstone. Low curved stone wall with single layer of brick as coping at each side. Pair of rusted iron gates.

Inside each pier is an evergreen oak. Limes along the straight carriage drive with Rh. ponticum.

The drive proper ends before a small garden in front of the house and  lanes go left and right. Bounding the garden is a decorative, looped iron fence upon a low stone wall. A lawn covers most of the garden with a pink flowered shrub rose in the centre. Where the conservatory stood, over to the left, is a fairly modern small porch. (Mrs Jenkin says that the door led into the kitchen so the owners used the external conservatory door approaching it from the main house door on the east side of the house. She remembers flower beds on the lawn). 

The left hand lane goes to the coach-house and associated buildings to the west of the house.

The right hand lane goes to the turning circle in front of the main (east) door. There is a square stone porch with a stone eagle at each corner. 

There is a grassy path going east to the walled garden. On its south side is a large holly surrounded by rhododendron and azelia; then a Sequoiadendron giganteum (Wellingtonia). Behind these to their south is a large single trunk Cryptomeria and a multiple trunk Macrocarpa. The south wall of the walled garden extends westwards to shelter them. Laurels close to the entrance to the garden.

To the left of the path, in order, there are; yew, Portuguese laurel, a cupressus of some sort followed by an enormous double trunked Western Red Cedar. Some steps down to the left cross water pipes to a bricked up well (?).

The garden entrance was more than two metres wide. There was decorative metalwork at each side and across the top with a central (missing) iron gate. The top part incorporated the quadrupal P signifying the marriage of Miss Philipps of Penty Park to Lord Milford (surname Philipps) of Picton. Some of this is lying in the undergrowth. See photographs.
The walled garden is large by Pembrokeshire standards being about 3 acres in extent. It is almost square, rather oddly sloping slightly down northwards. An E-W low retaining wall divides it in two; the smaller northern part was the kitchen garden and the larger southern part was devoted more to pleasure. Mrs. Jenkin remembers the large grassy area standing a few feet above the level of the other “half”.

As one enters one is faced by a long laurel hedge and one must turn left or right.  On the right, against the west wall, are two fig. Over to the right along the south wall is a shelter belt of trees, and, against the wall a path. At the other side is a brick-built “house” – a bothy? A potting shed? But we are not in the working garden. A play house? It is semi ruin.

There is a laurel hedge along the northern edge of the play area.

All the walls are of stone. The north wall and a stretch of the northern end of the west wall are brick lined. They are mostly in good condition except for parts of the east wall. Many coping stones remain; they look like slate but could be of a light coloured sandstone or limestone. They are about 36” x 20-24” with a longitudinal ridge close to one edge. (Photograph)
A central overgrown hornbeam hedge divides the working area in two.

The north wall:
At about ten feet (say 2.5m) intervals along the western end are tree protector brackets made in cast iron by Richardsons of Darlington. It looks as if, from the outside, the upper metre or so of wall was in fact rebuilt in the early part of the 20C to accommodate the bolts that hold the brackets. Some rotted timber survives to show how the glazing frames were seated on the bracket. Mrs. Jenkin remembers the greengages here; one survives.

There are signs of  the painted walls of two lean-to glasshouses which probably had flue-heated walls with furnaces on the outside. In the NE corner was the vinery, a square building with a boiler in the corner and hot water pipes under the floor.

Perhaps 10 metres in front of the wall was a brick built, free standing, greenhouse which is remembered as a melon house. It is the newest glasshouse in the garden. The timber parts have completely collapsed but the hot water pipes and the iron ventilation mechanisms survive. (GH may not have been diligent enough to locate a manufacturer’s name under the blackberries and nettles)

To the east of the latter house is a circular reservoir sunk into the ground and lined with stone. Steps down from the north side. A galvanised pipe protrudes. It is remembered as having a bung and the water was believed to come from a pool in the woods (to the east).

The children of the house used to play in it and catch newts there.

At the north end of the west wall is a brick-arched gateway.

A more informal, pleasure, garden, lies to the north of the house. There is a large square lawn close to the house.

A footpath goes north close to the west wall from outside the entrance to the walled garden. A pine, an oak and another pine next to the wall in succession with an Araucaria, which was on the left, fallen across the last pine and the wall. Rhododendrons on the left towards the end.

The transverse path going west has laurels on either side. Over to the right is a mixed shelter belt of mostly Ash, Pine and Sycamore.

At the end of the path is an iron handgate with brick piers leading into a field.

The footpath turns south and soon goes across a dam which holds a large pond. To the west side is a stone building. At the shallow east end of the pond is Gunnera and Bamboo with a large oak to the south of them and two Sequoiadendron further east.

Early in the 1990s the occupier, Mr Trevelyan Jones, began to fell trees and was taken to court by the Forestry Commission. Dr John Savidge, a botanist at the University College, Aberystwyth and a founder member (?) of the WHGT was called as an expert witness and the court ordered a halt. 

The modernised lodge, which was later a gardener’s cottage, is on the north side of the public road and south-west of the mansion. There was a footpath between them.

A working drive goes north from the public road about 200m east of the formal entrance.

At the SE corner of the walled garden is a crossroads. Rightwards takes one to Long Wood and the source of the house and garden water. Left on a track against the south wall of the WG. And north from this a track leads across a valley towards Fair Lawn..

Fair Lawn  (SN01572265) is approached most easily from the east being close to the road going north from Clarbeston Road to Walton East.

At 110m altitude it is only 10m higher than the mansion the roof of which is easily seen; when the trees were younger it must have been prominent. An eye-catching folly?

A much altered, severely ruined, building next to a pond (marked “spring” on the OS 2.5” map). Was there living accommodation? (At first GH and others wondered if this was a water source for the mansion but any pipe would have had to cross the steep valley - and there is no evidence of this – and Mrs Jenkin recalls the source as being in Lodge Wood. In her childhood there was a farmer tenant living in Fair Lawn.)

Fair Lawn consists of a two story building with a rather angular bay window facing south.

East of this are walls forming a low square the south wall of which is of brick with a wide bricked-in arch and wavey courses due to subsidence. There is a low wet area in front of it. To the north of the whole building is a silted-up pond (marked “spring”). Around the whole structure is an area, perhaps 50m square, raised a little at the south and west, bordered by a few mature trees (most of which have been recently felled).

The OS 25” map does not indicate a pond. Two bays are shown facing south but the east one has disappeared and none of the building now has a roof. Part of the building, behind the surviving bay, has been used as a cart shed in relatively recent times; it was entered through a wide stone arch. The square building to the south with a passage of some sort to it cannot be seen.

Of the features listed in the RCAMW database:

cd

gh
remains of several

lo
modernised (probably separate ownership)

po
several including one in garden

pt
?

terr
various

wg
large with many remains of original features

Of features on maps but not listed in the RCAMW database:

arb
specimen trees survive but, about 1980 the then owner was summoned for felling protected trees. John Savidge was a witness for the Forestry Commision.

bh
remains can be seen in corner vinery and free-standing glasshouse

cons
diappeared

fol
Fair Lawn?

h
mansion intact


k
part of walled garden

la


res
in walled garden

wa

wold
(GH is very conscious of the fact that the visits to Penty Park were made  when his experience in recording was minimal. Revisits have not been made because the owner was non-too welcoming. He is a developer who wished to sell the site in several lots including the kitchen garden with outline permission for a bungalow and caravans and was wary of any interference from the likes of ourselves.)
Planning application 29th May 2001 by Acanthus Holden, architects, on behalf of the owner, Mr and Mrs  M. Whittingham, for a new roof and dormers and new window in existing opening. Also to be repaired are three chimney stacks and portico and bay roofs.

Plans were submitted of each floor and of the roof and elevations of all sides.

The dormers will not be visiible as they face onto the roof valley; they will match the other dormers around the four elevations. The sash window will match the others and provide much needed light to the room.

(see advertisement in Western Mail June 13th 2001)

Planning application February 2002 by owner for outline permission for a house in the NE corner of the walled garden. GH expresses interest.

Planning application March 2005 by purchasers from Jersey – detailed survey and planning proposals for a similar house to above with plans, maps, consultant reports etc

Conversation (29.3,05) with Dr Briggs who says that the RCAMW would like copies of the surveys if permission is granted

Conversation with Peter Holden (Acanthus Architects)   Photocopy of page of Richardson’s catalogue with engraving of tree protector and photograph of bracket  by GH sent to Peter Holden.

GH letter to the owners requesting permission for a visit by the branch and for copies of the planning documents to be lodged with RCAMW.  Granted.

Branch visit Wednesday  15th June 2005 well attended.  Little has changed. A contractor is cutting the grass but the glasshouse is vastly overgrown. Towards the west end of the south (higher, treed) area is a circle of Lonicera nitida hedge perhaps 10m diameter with overgrown shrub occupying the centre. Not on the maps. Much of the wall is in unstable condition. The east row of hornbeam remains but with vastly thickened trunks; it is doubtful whether it could ever become elegant. Opposite, where a parallel row would have stood, a line of yew has been planted in recent years.

Letter of thanks to Mr and Mrs Schindler, the owners

Documents in file:

Text

Letter from Recorder to Planning Officer re application for a building at Fair Lawn

(21st December 2001)

Colour photographs of mansion, lodge, drive, gardens etc (32)

OS 25” 1st edition maps and enlargements

Ditto 2nd edition

Sketch plans of surrounds and walled garden

Advertisements for Richardson and Cooper tree protectors

Completed WHGT form

Sale brochure JJ Morris for mansion

Sale brochure Coast and Country Dec 2001 for farm building conversions

Sketches and notes mostly of garden structures (5)

Richardsons catalogue – five pages - names of clients

Note re portraits in Welsh Houses

Notes on memorials at Walton East church (2) and recent pedigree

Further notes and pedigree

Announcement of engagement of PWI Trevelyan Jones (Daily Telegraph 10th July 1999)

Planning notice Western Telegraph 22nd December 1999

Letter from Recorder to Owner 14th August 1997

Colour photographs of Fair Lawn (4)

Notes on Fair Lawn

C1905  photograph of entrance to walled garden with Eleanor in nanny’s arms

Western Telegraph cutting: Warren Trevellian Jones sings at funeral of the Queen Mother

(Publication of Memories by Mrs Cecelia Jenkin) 

JJ Morris Sale Brochure September 2002  Outbuildings inc map

Owen & Owen with Knight Frank Sale Brochure August 2003 (walled garden and small paddock to east with outline permission for a large bungalow  £300.000

BJP Sale Brochure  December 2003 as above but without detailed plan

Western Telegraph 29th September 2004  Feature with photograph re the publication of the late Mrs Cecelia Jenkin’s second volume of memoirs

Western Telegraph 17th August 2005   Death of Peter Trevelyan-Jones reported by lady friend without mentioning his late wife 

Western Telegraph 4th July 2007  County Council Notice   Planning Application for dwelling within the walled garden
